
Harrisburg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

1 

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 

February 20, 2024 

Chairperson: Todd Culver, Presiding 
Commissioners Present: Jeremy Moritz, Joe Neely, Susan Jackson, Rhonda Giles, Kurt 

Kayner, and Kent Wullenwaber 
Staff Present: City Administrator/Planner Michele Eldridge, Finance Officer/Deputy 

City Recorder Cathy Nelson, and Planning Consultant Zach 
Galloway 

Meeting Location: Harrisburg Municipal Center located at 354 Smith St. 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL: Order was called at 7:00pm by Chairperson Todd Culver. 

CONCERNED CITIZEN(S) IN THE AUDIENCE. Everyone present was there for items on the 
agenda. 

PUBLIC HEARING 
THE MATTER OF THE PROPOSED PRELIMINARY SUBDIVISION CASTLEBERRY CROSSING 
AND ADJUSTMENT DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS LOCATED AT 930 SOMMERVILLE LOOP. 

Chairperson Todd Culver read aloud the order of proceedings, and noted the procedures for 
a continuance, and the process to keep the record open. 

At the hour of 7:05PM, the Public Hearing was opened. 

Culver asked if there were any Conflicts of Interest or any Ex Parte contacts. 
None stated. 
There were no rebuttals in relation to Conflicts of Interest, or Ex Parte Contacts. 

Culver then read aloud the criteria that were relied upon for this land use hearing and noted 
additional copies of criteria near the door. He also directed the audience on how they would 
need to direct testimony towards the applicable criteria, and how an appeal could be made. 

STAFF REPORT: Eldridge introduced Zach Galloway the City of Harrisburg’s Planning consultant. 
Galloway provided a brief overview of the subdivision. This property is being split into 53 lots and is 



Harrisburg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

2 

 

 

located south of Sommerville Loop. It is a R1 and R2 zone. There will be 15 lots with single 
detached homes and 28 lots for townhomes. The developer will be extending 9th Street. Lots 48 and 
49 are requesting adjustments.  
 
Eldridge highlighted the following conditions and Criteria:  

 Criterion 1 – Met. 
 Criterion 2 – Met with Condition 1: Plat name, Condition 2: Infrastructure mutual agreement, 

and Condition 3: Wetland-related permit. 
 Criterion 3 – Met.  
 Criterion 4 – Met. 
 Criterion 5 – Met. 
 Criterion 6 – Met. 
 Criterion 7 – Met. 
 Criterion 8 – Met with Condition 4: Final site plan showing 50-ft min. driveway approach, 

and Condition 5: Final site plan showing vision clearing. 
 Criterion 9 – Met with Condition 6: landscape plan, and Condition 7: Outdoor lighting plan. 
 Criterion 10 – Met. 
 Criterion 11 – Met with Condition 8: Extend Sommerville Loop public improvements to the 

eastern and western extent of the site’s property line, Condition 9: Improve Sommerville 
Loop right-of-way, Condition 10: Removed, Condition 11: Improve Santiam Street and 
South 9th Street rights-of-way, and Condition 12: Provide street tree planting funds, 
Condition 13: Provide safe pedestrian crossing.  

o Moritz clarified that Condition 10 was removed to allow for more parking.  
 Criterion 12 – Met. 
 Criterion 13 – Met. 
 Criterion 14 – Met with Condition 14: Provide stormwater management plan.  
 Criterion 15 – Met with Condition 15: Underground utilities. 
 Criterion 16 – Met with Condition 16: Proposed easements. 
 Criterion 17 – Met with Condition 17: Acquire all required permits. 
 Criterion 18 – Met with Condition 18: Provide acceptable plan for installation of provided 

specifications. 
 Criterion 19 – Met. Development Consideration 2: Development Agreement applies.   

o Kayner asked how wide the streets were, Eldridge stated they will be 60’ on 
Sommerville Loop.  

o Culver added that the improvements on Sommerville Loop are only on the South 
side of the street and only where this development touches.  

o Moritz asked if future development will continue on with a 60’ street; Eldridge replied 
that it would. 

Staff feels that all requirements are met and recommends approval. 
 
APPLICANTS TESTIMONY: Jennifer Arnold of Hayden Homes gave a brief presentation 
highlighting the 53-lot subdivision with lots 48 and 49 requesting a normal code adjustment. 
Driveways will be paired in the R-2 zone. They are proposing townhouses with two (2) in group 
resembling a duplex. 

 Moritz asked if the new code and adoptions took care of the density zone adjustment. 
Arnold said it did. They will be using the 20% adjustment to get them to the number of 
desired lots.   

Brian Thoreson from Hayden Homes also addressed the Planning Commission concerning the 
CC&R’s. He stated that the owners will have a joint maintenance agreement.  

 Neely asked is insurance spelled out the agreement. Eldridge replied that the City does not 
specify insurance issues.  



Harrisburg Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
February 20, 2024 

3 

 Kayner asked when the projected start date is. Thorsen replied this year and hopefully
finished all lots in early 2025.

TESTIMONY IN FAVOR WAS ASKED FOR. 
 Bob Bronson of Sommerville Loop asked if the owners would own the dwelling and land.

Developer said yes. He also asked about the City stormwater system. Eldridge said the ditch on
Sommerville Loop will be completely culverted, and will interact with the detention ponds.

TESTIMONY IN OPPOSITION TESTIMONY WAS ASKED FOR. 
 Aaron Smucker of Sommerville Loop stated that he was concerned about the road space,

since it was already small. Eldridge clarifies that the street width will remain at 60’ wide; and
parking will be off the street. The parking area will be increased. Smucker also asked about
fencing and if it was going to be completed before construction started. Eldridge replied a
fence is in the first phase.

NEAUTRAL TESTIMONY WAS ASKED FOR. 
 Gordan Moritz of Sommerville Loop asked where the extension of 9th Street was going to join

Sommerville Loop. The wall map was shown for clarification.

The public hearing was closed at the hour of 8:19pm. 

 Jackson asked how much parking was going to be available for the lots with duplexes.
Eldridge referred to page 5 and stated 2 spots onsite per dwelling.

 Giles motioned to approve the amended Castleberry Crossing preliminary subdivision
and associated adjustment, LU No. 455-2024, and LU 456-2024, subject to the
conditions of approval contained in the staff report of February 15, 2024. This motion is
based on findings contained in the February 15, 2024 staff report, and on findings
made during the deliberations on the request and was seconded by Kayner. The
Planning Commission then voted unanimously to approve the amended Castleberry
Crossing preliminary subdivision and associated adjustment, LU No. 455-2024, and LU
456-2024, subject to the conditions of approval contained in the staff report of
February 15, 2024. This motion is based on findings contained in the February 15, 2024
staff report, and on findings made during the deliberations on the request

OTHERS 

 Planning Commission will review a site plan at the next meeting for a 13,000 sq ft warehouse.

With no further discussion, the meeting was adjourned at the hour of 8:32 pm. 

Chairperson City Recorder 



NOTICE OF DECISION



NOTICE OF DECISION



NOTICE OF DECISION



NOTICE OF DECISION



NOTICE OF DECISION




